SCARBOROUGH MAINE

Long Range Planning Committee Meeting February 9, 2024 8-9:30 am

In Person: Public Safety

Virtually via Zoom: To view the meeting via Zoom, Click Here

Members of the public may attend virtually or in person. Committee members are expected to attend in person unless the member meets one of the circumstances established in the Committee's remote participation policy.

Members: Allen Paul, Rick Shinay, Peter Freilinger, Marvin Gates, Robyn Saunders Alternates: Portia Hirschman and Robert Odlin Planning Board Liaison: Rachel Hendrickson Council Liaisons: Jean-Marie Caterina and Jon Anderson

- I. Roll Call
- II. Review Minutes January 12, 2024
- III. Review Work Plan for 2024
- IV. Chapter 405B Site Plan Standards and Commercial Design Standards Merger/Update
 Site Layout Standards and Architecture Discuss Potential for 2025 Budget
 Initiative
- V. Public Comment
- VI. Staff Updates
- VII. Committee Member Updates
- VIII. Adjourn Next Meeting March 8, 2024



Long Range Planning Committee Meeting January 12, 2024 8-9:30 am

In Person in Council Chambers & Virtually via Zoom

In attendance: Allen Paul, Marvin Gates, Rick Shinay, Robyn Saunders, Peter Freilinger, Portia Hirschman (via Zoom)(alternate), Rachel Hendrickson, Jon Anderson, Don Hamill, Autumn Speer, Karen Martin, Eric Sanderson

I. Review Minutes December 8, 2023

Marvin Gates motioned to accept the minutes, second by Rick Shinay. Approved 5-0-0.

II. Elect Chair and Vice Chair.

Peter Freilinger nominated Allen Paul as chair, second by Robyn Saunders. Approved 5-0-0.

Allen Paul nominated Rick Shinay as vice chair, second by Peter Freilinger. Approved 5-0-0.

III. Review and make a recommendation to Ordinance Committee to consider increasing the building height permitted in the TVC District(s)

Autumn presented several options to increase maximum building height in the TVC zoning districts in the Oak Hill and Dunstan areas. The original staff recommendation was to add Planning Board discretion for up to a 20% increase in height for design features and rooftop screening requirements. This would allow for an additional 9-10 feet to accommodate utility screening for elevators etc., as well as a more varied architectural aesthetic in these areas to avoid flat roofs at the maximum height. It would not affect residential density or allow for more than the currently permitted 4 stories. At the LRPC meeting in December, it was discussed that adding additional height over the staff recommendation would be in line with the comprehensive plan and help to encourage growth in desired locations. Staff also presented two options based on that conversation; one increasing height for the TVC district to 65' and another for 75'.

Marvin Gates indicated his concerns with this proposal and how it could affect growth and traffic concerns as indicated in the 2023 survey presented to Council in January. Moving this proposal forward would pose perception issues by the public. The Committee went on to discuss that the Comprehensive Plan designates these areas as growth areas, and the town should be directing any growth there as appropriate. Robyn and Peter noted this could drastically impact affordability and the housing crisis by directing any growth where public services and utilities are already available. Allowing a higher building height beyond what the Committee is reviewing today would be a great opportunity to leave more room for open space, reduce impervious area, and increase stormwater management capability. While the current proposal does not deal with that kind of height increase, they emphasized this and how it could create a congruent town center between Oak Hill and The Downs.

Don Hamill raised his concerns, noting the Appointments & Negotiations Committee appointed Marvin Gates and Peter Freilinger to represent the public on the Long Range Planning Committee. He requested the notes from that Appointments Committee meeting be included with future materials and the minutes from this meeting. His primary concerns include safety and additional traffic in the area, especially with respect to Maple Avenue. The residents of Maple Avenue are involved in discussions with the Town Manager and Public Safety staff to implement safety measures in this area. Autumn responded that a meeting with residents of this area is scheduled for January 16th at 6:30PM and those concerns would be able to be discussed then. She did clarify that if a particular project has 51% or more designated affordable units, parking requirements can be reduced in the effort to encourage use of public transit and pedestrian facilities to mitigate traffic in town.

Rachel stated the Planning Board would like to have discretion to potentially increase the maximum allowed height from 45 to 54-55 feet for certain architectural features or utilities, as long as specific parameters are outlined for the Board in the Ordinances. She has concerns on how this proposal could impact Dunstan, as much of the existing building heights are minimal in this area. She was supportive of increasing height away from Route 1 but cautioned and requested specifics for buildings located close to Route 1 or other public streets.

Planning Board discretion with these potential new height allowances was discussed, with Autumn recommending to move forward with a compromise where the Board could increase the height for utility screening but not to explicitly increase the allowable building height. Allen was hesitant on this, and indicated his concerns that applicants often make the case for things that are or aren't required, so he would rather explicitly increase the height altogether. He echoed earlier points that increasing height closer to the 75 feet allowed at The Downs would further creation of a cohesive downtown area via building up instead of building out creating sprawl.

Jon Anderson encouraged the Committee to think about what this change would mean for the town in the long term, however, directing growth to growth areas may get the town to a tipping point where transit becomes more feasible. The traffic piece is key, especially with MaineDOT designated High Crash Locations in this area, and he questioned the impact this proposal could have on that. He also emphasized how the town can make green space happen if building height increases leaving more room for other site features.

At this point in the meeting, Marvin Gates made a motion to move forward recommending the original proposal to Council, which was seconded by Rick. Robyn discussed limiting height increases to only allow utility screening and varying roof lines is a missed opportunity, especially with respect to our Comp Plan goals and affordable housing. Portia suggested to remove the Planning Board discretion and flat out allow 55 feet as a maximum height in the TVC zone. Jon agreed with this point, and Don expressed his concern indicating the Council heavily relies on the Committee's recommendation. He volunteered to write a Councilor Corner article for the public regarding today's deliberation and the proposal. Additionally, further hearings could be beneficial prior to any Council action or recommendation from the Ordinance Committee to the full body. Staff offered to provide information to the Communications Committee on the proposal and potential impact to assist with the outreach process.

With the Committee generally feeling taking away the Planning Board discretion was appropriate, Marvin withdrew his motion and Rick withdrew his second. At this point Peter Freilinger made a motion to recommend to the Ordinance Committee to allow 1 additional story (5 stories total) and a maximum building height of 60 feet. This was seconded by Robyn Saunders. The motion passed 3-2-0 (Allen Paul, Marvin Gates)Portia Hirschman was also in favor of the proposal, but was not a voting member as an alternate. Allen and Marvin requested their opinions on their "no" vote be included in these minutes. In short, Allen thought this was too big a move, and that a height closer to 55 feet would allow for an incremental approach to get to taller heights (i.e. 60-75 feet maximums), while Marvin noted the recommendation to 60 feet and an additional story was concerning for growth, traffic, and safety items identified by residents in the 2023 survey.

IV. Review and make a recommendation to Ordinance Committee concerning Chapter 405B Site Plan Standards and Commercial Design Standards Merger/Update – Draft Site Layout Standards

Autumn gave an overview that looking at layout and siting of buildings, parkin g location, and reducing setbacks to this effect will give the town a more cohesive aesthetic, especially along Route 1 (on which development varies widely). Peter Freilinger suggested the language on page 1 of the proposal include "mixed use" in the section reading "The primary goal of the site plan review process it to produce attractive...commercial, <u>mixed use</u>, and multifamily development sites". Robyn and Allen noted what happens with Route 1 moving forward, including the width of MaineDOT right of way and authority over Route 1 affects what the town can do. Allen noted in reviews past it was stated only 25% of traffic on Route 1 was pass through, so implementing any road diets (islands, reducing road width, etc.) could pose problematic. Portia added sidewalks and pedestrian infrastructure would be needed to avoid bikers and walkers from being constrained between the road and buildings close to Route 1. Autumn suggested the Committee look at building architecture by neighborhood. This item was then tabled due to time constraints.

- V. Public Comment
- VI. Staff Updates

Autumn noted interviews will be underway shortly for the town's vulnerability assessment, and that a RFQ is out for the town's open space master plan.

VII. Committee Member Updates

Robyn indicated her concern for development and how it impacts flooding as we have seen in the last few storms in the last several weeks. Portia added the Transportation Committee is starting work on the Transportation Master Plan.

Jon Anderson updated the Committee that there will be a Councilor Corner on January 25th to go over what the town wants for a school proposal and solutions on what to move forward with, including breakout sessions to pin point our values as town and how they relate to this project. He encouraged the town to think about how the Gorham connector could impact zoning and commercial development. Is there an opportunity?

VIII. Adjourn – Next Meeting February 9, 2024

Robyn made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Rick. Passes unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:40AM





MEMO

To: Tom Hall, Town Manager

From: Autumn Speer, Director of Planning and Codes

Date: January 26, 2024

Re: Long Range Planning Committee Work Plan 2024

The Long-Range Planning Committee (LRPC) is an advisory group acting to develop and recommend plans for growth and development of the Town in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, the ordinances of the Town and the general laws of the State of Maine. The LRPC oversees the implementation of the Town's Comprehensive Plan and prepares amendments to the zoning ordinance and other land use regulations. The LRPC is tasked with coordinating amendments or updates to the Town's Comprehensive Plan, reviewing growth trends and patterns of the community and developing land use ordinances, regulations and amendments to guide the growth and development of Scarborough.

The Comprehensive Plan identifies five Visions for the Town of Scarborough:

Vision 1: The Scarborough Marsh is central to the Town's identity, creating a special awareness by our residents of the importance of all of the Town's natural resources, therefore future land use will follow a pattern of development that is sensitive to protecting our beaches, dunes, rivers, open spaces, farmlands, and other elements that comprise our unique ecosystem.

Visions 2: Future land use patterns will create opportunities for the efficient delivery of municipal services and infrastructure, resulting in fiscal sustainability.

Vision 3: Our ordinances will support the diversity and characteristics of existing and emerging neighborhoods, centers and open spaces. – Simplify Zoning Ordinance

Vision 4: Scarborough's economy will support a broad assortment of businesses that provides stability for the tax base, respects the Town's natural resources, and that supports opportunities for residents.

Planning & Code Enforcement

259 US Route One | PO Box 360 | Scarborough, ME 04070 | P: 207.730.4040 | scarboroughmaine.org

Vision 5: Scarborough's transportation network will support current and future land uses that create efficiencies which reduce the impact of traffic on residents and businesses.

Under each of these visions are action items that have been assigned to various boards and committees within the Town.

In 2023 the Planning Department in coordination with the LRPC began working on a long-term project that includes simplifying our existing ordinances (Vision 3) and finding opportunities to incorporate changes where recommended with these consolidations.

The project includes reviewing the Zoning Ordinance, Site Plan Ordinance, Commercial Design Guidelines, Subdivision Ordinance and other policies in the Town for opportunities to consolidate/merge ideas and review and enhance existing requirements. The overall goal is to create a more cohesive set of standards, while removing ambiguity and subjectivity in the review process.

These efforts also consider the other visons of the Comprehensive Plan and Town goals and seeks to incorporate those ideas as well.

The **Zoning Ordinance**, Chapter 405 includes the following related elements:

- Uses and Bulk Standards
- Buffers
- Performance Standards
- Signage
- Parking

The Site Plan Ordinance Chapter 405 B Includes the following related elements:

- Site Design and Access
- Parking Areas and Circulation
- Pedestrian Spaces and Transportation
- Landscape and Buffers
- Stormwater Management
- Lighting
- Architectural Standards
- Signage
- Utilities
- Outdoor Storage
- Preservation of Resources
- Environmental Considerations

The **Design Standards for Commercial Districts** published in 2001, amended in 2009 includes the following elements:

- Circulation Planning
- Parking Areas
- Pedestrian Spaces
- Sidewalks
- Service Areas
- Buffering and Screening
- Stormwater Management
- Architectural Standards
- Materials
- Landscape Standards
- Plant List
- Sign Standards
- Lighting

The various pieces of these ordinances and standards have been divided up and assigned to the board or committee that is best suited for review and additions. The items in italics are included in current work plans.

Project Timeline:

- Lighting Standards
 - Sustainability Committee APPROVED OCTOBER 2023
- Landscaping and Screening Standards, Including Plant List
 - LRPC & Conservation Commission
 - Ordinance Committee FEBRUARY 2024
- Environmental Standards
 - Conservation Commission ORPORATED
 - Ordinance Committee MARCH 2024
- Architectural Standards and Site Layout
 - o LRPC
 - Current Work ANTICIPATED SUMMER 2024
 - *Potential for consultant led project reviewing Village Standards
- Parking Standards
 - LRPC & Transportation Committee
 - SUMMER/FALL 2024
- Sign Standards
 - o LRPC
 - WINTER 2024/25

In addition to the ordinance consolidation project the LRPC may also be involved in one or more of the following this year:

- Food Trucks SUMMER
- Short Term Rental (Registration Process) MARCH / APRIL
- Residential Districts Density vs lot area and lot size required relative to existing neighborhoods
- Home Business definitions and allowances SUMMER

2.9.24 LRPC DRAFT

BLACK – CHAPTER 405 SITE PLAN REVIEW – Strike through = Duplications GREEN – PROPOSED BLUE – COMMERCIAL DESIGN STANDARDS – Strike through = Duplications HIGHLIGHTS – CHANGES SINCE LAST REVIEW ON JUNE 7, 2023

SECTION XX: ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN STANDARDS

1. PURPOSE.

The purpose of architectural design standards is to encourage design which draws its inspiration from traditional New England examples while complementing the neighborhood or village in which the site is located.

Aesthetics and identity standards aim to create buildings and spaces that are visually appealing, distinctive, and meaningful.

Architectural design must Good-neighborhood-buildings that thoughtfully consider scale, form, orientation, height, setback, massing, materials, and architectural features.

The purpose of these standards is to encourage design that architecture within Scarborough's commercial districts that draws its inspiration from traditional New England examples while . Building design shall reinforce a human scaled environment through careful consideration of architectural forms, massing, detailing, number and use of materials, and color.

The purpose of architectural design standards and the aesthetics of the signage on a site shall follow traditional New England building forms and shall be designed to complement the neighborhood or village in which the site is located.

Architecture that offers a positive experience from three perspectives: by the pedestrian viewing the buildings up close, by the motorist driving along the road corridor and in relation to surrounding buildings that fic into the community's identity.

2. APPLICABILITY. MOVED

All commercial and multi-family structures constructed after the date of effect of this Ordinance shall comply with these requirements. This includes, but is not limited to, new construction, renovations, reconstruction or any other façade changes proposed through the Site Plan or Subdivision process. The provisions of this section shall not apply to individual single and two-family dwellings and their accessory buildings, structures and areas for parking. The provisions of this section shall not apply to Light Industrial (LI) or Industrial (I) zoned developments.

In addition to complying with the foregoing performance and design standards, for properties located in the Residence and Professional Office District (RPO), the Local Business District (B-1), the Town and Village Centers District (TVC), the General Business District (B-2), the Highway Business District (B-H), the Haigis Parkway District (HP), and any commercial uses within the Traditional Neighborhood Development Overlay (TND)-shall comply with more specific Design Standards for Scarborough's Commercial Districts.

In determining whether a project is designed in accordance with the Commercial Design Standards, the Applicable Reviewing Authority Planning Board may engage the services of appropriate professionals to review (at the applicant's expense) the materials submitted.

In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between any requirement of the Design Standards and a requirement of this Ordinance, the Scarborough Zoning Ordinance, the Scarborough Shoreland Zoning Ordinance, or the Scarborough Subdivision Regulations, the more restrictive requirement shall apply.

3. GENERAL STANDARDS.

New and renovated buildings shall be designed to fit the individual characteristics of their particular site. The architecture shall be influenced by traditional New England building forms and town making patterns, the specific needs of the intended users, the nature of the intended use, and other site-specific factors. Contemporary architectural styles are appropriate, provided they meet these standards.

Buildings shall present an inviting, human-scaled façade to the street, internal drives, parking areas, and abutting properties.

Buildings are to be designed that are designed to human scale that address the comfort, enjoyment, and safety of the users.

Buildings that are designed as permanent, positive additions to the commercial district, constructed of high quality, long lasting materials.

Buildings on street corners are to be designed that are treated as special places.

Architecture that utilizes energy conservation measures wherever possible.

Older buildings that are restored and/or reused to maintain the integrity of Scarborough's historic heritage.

Buildings and site elements shall be designed to human scale. The forms, massing, and openings of buildings shall be proportional to the size of a human figure. Many

architectural elements can add scale to a building: watertables, integral planters, recessed openings, windows with divided panes, building mounted light fixtures, dormers, cupolas, projecting rooflines, covered walkways, colonnades, and similar features.

Many existing commercial buildings may be coming before the Planning Board for Site Plan approval as they undergo major renovations or additions. This is an opportunity to add visual interest to the building and to strengthen its relationship with the site and nearby structures. The Town expects high quality architectural and site design for all renovated structures.

4. DEFINITIONS.

5. ARCHITECTURAL PLANS REQUIRED.

All elevations of proposed buildings shall be evaluated as part of the design review. The Planning Board may request perspectives of the building to illustrate the three-dimensional relationship between the front and side elevations. Elevations and perspective drawings shall include all landscape elements (trees, shrubs, lighting, street furnishings, etc.) that will be seen in conjunction with the facade.

Any structure subject to site plan review shall be designed by an architect licensed in the State of Maine.

6. FRONT FAÇADE AND BUILDING ENTRANCE

Building-Public entrances shall be designed to be visible from the street and provide unobstructed areas for pedestrians.

The All-façades containing the public main entrances shall be treated as a front façade. and shall be designed in a manner that is consistent with the design standards. The All front facades shall contain a clearly defined, highly visible customer entrance and three or more of the following elements to add scale to the building:

- canopies
- overhanging rooflines to provide shelter for pedestrians
- recesses or projections in keeping with the scale of the building
- arcades
- raised corniced parapets over entrances
- gables and dormers
- pilasters
- peaked roof forms
- outdoor seating or dining areas

- display windows that are visible from the sidewalk
- architectural details such as moldings which are integrated into the building design
- other features which are designed to add scale and visual interest to the facade.

Wherever possible, entrances shall be clearly visible from the street and reinforced through site and architectural features designed to direct visitors to the building.

When multiple entries are provided, each pedestrian entrances to each building shall be clearly delineated to convey a sense of individuality. This can be accomplished by architectural detailing, roofline breaks, landscaping, lighting or a combination of these elements. Where covered walkways are used, they should extend the full length of the facede.

7. TRANSPARENCY, WINDOWS AND DOORS COMBINED

For retail structures, The front facade or any other facade that faces a public or private street shall have display windows, entry areas, or other transparent features along 40% or more of its horizontal length.

This standard may be waived if other architectural elements are used to provide scale and visual interest to the front facade in keeping with these Design Standards. Moved to waivers

Windows, door openings, ventilation openings, and other forms of exterior fenestration in frame construction shall be trimmed.

Windows should be vertical in orientation, or square.

If shutters are used, they must be sized to fit the openings and provided for all windows on a given wall.

8. ARTICULATION - GENERAL

No uninterrupted length of any facade shall exceed 100 horizontal feet. Facades greater than 100 feet in length shall incorporate wall plane projections or recesses having a depth of at least 3% of the length of the facade and extending at least 20 percent of the length of the facade. Where the plane of a wall is broken, the offset shall be proportional to the building's height and length.

Strong shadow lines, changes in rooflines, pilasters and other architectural details, patterns in the surface material, and wall openings can all be effectively used to add visual interest and scale to the facade. Projections used to break up the mass of the building shall extend to the ground.

Blank walls facing public roads, residential neighborhoods, or abutting properties are prohibited. Where rear or side facades are visible from adjacent properties or roadways they

shall be designed to match or complement the architectural treatment of the primary facade to give it scale and visual interest.

9. ARTICULATION – CORNER STRUCTURES

The architectural treatment of the street corner of the building shall emphasize its prominent position. This can be accomplished by greater massing and height, unique detailing, lighting, and other facade treatment to emphasize the front comer of the building. This comer treatment shall be designed to be visible from both streets. Where practical, an entrance to the building shall be located on the comer.

Buildings on corners shall be a minimum of two stories or twenty feet (20') in height to add mass and visual prominence to the street.

Buildings located on comers are particularly important because they help define the character of two streets. These high visibility locations shall be emphasized by quality architecture and site development.

Both facades of corner buildings shall be designed as front facades according to the standards in Facade Design, p. 5. Blank or unadorned facades facing streets on comer buildings are prohibited. The facade of the upper floor(s) shall be visually related to the ground floor through repetition of design elements, e.g., color, materials, window treatment, and detailing that will unify the structure and help frame the ground floor.

10. MATERIALS

Building materials shall be treated as important design elements that define the appearance of the structure and strengthen the sense of identity throughout Scarborough. The use of materials that give the appearance of New England architectural forms are strongly encouraged.

Building materials shall be treated as significant design elements that define the appearance of the structure and strengthen the sense of identity throughout Scarborough. The use of materials that give the appearance of New England architecture is strongly encouraged.

Traditional, high-quality building materials common to northern New England (e.g., brick, clapboard, shingles or other similar products) shall be used as the primary siding material. Contemporary materials that have the same visual characteristics (e.g., cement plank clapboards or vinyl siding) are acceptable if attention is paid to detailing (e.g., comers, trim at openings, changes in material). Painted MDO plywood is acceptable when used in combination with traditional materials to give it scale. Long-term maintenance needs shall be a consideration in the selection of all building materials

Highly reflective or processed materials (e.g., metal or plastic panels, brushed aluminum, bronzed glass, concrete block, T-111, untreated plywood, dryvit, etc.) and multicolored brick (incorporating occasional white bricks in a random pattern) shall not be used on the

primary or front-facing facade.

11. COLORS

Traditional colors commonly found in New England villages are appropriate for all components of the building. Facade colors shall be low reflectance. The use of high intensity, high reflectance, chrome, metallic, or fluorescent colors or black is prohibited as the primary color.

Where trim is used, it shall be a color that complements to the building's primary color. Neon tubing shall not be allowed as an exterior trim or accent material.

Arbitrary changes in materials or embellishments that are not in keeping with the rest of the building are discouraged.

12. AWNINGS AND CANOPIES

Awnings and canopies can enhance the appearance and function of a building by providing shade, shelter, shadow patterns, and visual interest. Where awnings are used, they shall complement the design, materials, color, and appearance of the building.

Where awnings are used, both fixed or retractable, they shall be an integral element of the architecture. Awnings shall be located directly over windows or doors to provide protection from the elements.

Awnings and canopies shall not be made of reflective materials, such as metal or plastic. Their color shall match or complement the facade of the building

Graphics used on awnings for identification or advertising shall be designed as an integral part of the signage program for the property, and shall be coordinated with other sign elements in terms of typeface, color, and spacing. Awnings shall not be used as advertising features or light sources. Backlit awnings are prohibited. Graphics on canopies are counted toward the total signage area.

13. FUNCTIONAL ELEMENTS

All vents, downspouts, flashing, electrical conduits, meters, HVAC equipment, service areas, loading docks, service connections, and other functional elements shall be treated as integral parts of the architecture, starting at the conceptual building design phase. When these elements need to be part of the facade (e.g., downspouts, vents) they shall be incorporated into the architecture through detailing or matching colors.

Meters, utility banks, HVAC equipment, and other exterior service elements shall be contained in service closets, behind walls, or located out of view from the public.

Building elevations presented for Planning Board review shall show the location and treatment of all functional elements.

14. ROOFLINES

Rooflines shall be designed to provide diversity in the form of the building and add visual interest to the streetscape. Specifically, rooflines shall be designed to reduce the mass of large buildings, emphasize building entrances, provide shelter or shade for pedestrians, and incorporate elements unique to Maine and New England.

Rooflines shall be designed to provide diversity in the form of the building and add visual interest to the streetscape. When used properly, rooflines can reduce the mass of large buildings, emphasize entrances, and provide shelter and shade for the pedestrian.

Buildings with pitched roofs are strongly encouraged. Where pitched roofs are used, the minimal pitch shall be at least 5/12. Projecting rooflines shall be designed to create strong shade/ shadow patterns.

False mansard, A-frames, and other non-traditional roof forms shall not be used as the primary roofline.

Flat roofs, especially on single-story isolated buildings, are discouraged in most applications. Where flat rooflines are used, the design shall create no horizontal line greater than 100 feet without a break, using features found on traditional New England buildings.

See pp. 15-16 Large Scale Buildings for additional design standards. Flat roofs on multistory office buildings are appropriate when designed in conformance with the *Office Building* design standards.

In the HP, RH and BOR Districts, flat roofs are anticipated and acceptable on office, research and hi-tech buildings which are three or more stories in height. In these instances, changes in the roofline, pilasters, trim and other architectural detailing shall be used to vary and break up a flat roofline.

Where parapets are used to break up a flat roofline, the height of the parapet shall be at least five percent of the total length of the wall.

Variations in rooflines, detailing, and building heights shall be included to break up the scale of connected linear buildings.

15. ROOF MATERIALS

Composite asphalt shingles and standing-seam non-glare metal are preferred for visible roofing. High gloss roofing materials shall not be used. Roofing materials shall

complement the color and texture of the building's facade. Roof colors shall be muted earth tones or a color that is darker than the facade. Stripes and patterns on the roof are strongly discouraged.

16. ROOFTOP SCREENING

Mechanical and other equipment mounted on rooftops must be screened from public view or grouped in a location where visibility is limited. Where used, screening for roof-mounted equipment shall be designed as an integral part of the architecture to complement the building's mass and appearance.

Roof mounted signs are prohibited by the Sign Regulations in the Zoning Ordinance.

17. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS - FRANCHISE DESIGN

Large retail buildings, linear commercial buildings, national franchise buildings, and service stations shall all comply with the specific requirements for such structures found in the *Design Standards for Scarborough's Commercial Districts, January* 27, 2003.

National franchises (e.g., restaurants, service stations, retail stores) are a welcome and permitted use within Scarborough's commercial districts. However, the design of these buildings can contribute to the loss of identity for Scarborough by the repetition of generic architectural forms that are found throughout the country. Buildings for these types of uses shall reflect an awareness of New England architectural traditions in their form, detailing, and materials.

Architectural forms primarily derived from building styles from other regions of the country are prohibited. New England regional prototypes from national franchises are permitted, provided they meet the Design Standards. Buildings that are stylized to the point where the structure is a form of advertising are not acceptable.

Applicants shall provide the Planning Board with illustrations that demonstrate how site features and accessory structures will be coordinated with the principle building. These may include dumpster screens, storage buildings, refrigeration lockers, playgrounds, signage, and lighting.

18. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS - LARGE SCALE RETAIL – OVER 20,000 SQ FT

Due to their visibility and mass, large scale buildings (**20,000** square feet or greater), such as 'big box' retail or grocery stores, can greatly enhance or detract from the visual character of the commercial district. These buildings shall be designed as attractive pieces of commercial architecture that are consistent with the scale and form found in Scarborough traditional buildings.

Large structures shall be designed to break up their mass into smaller visual components

through the use of projections, recesses, and varied facade treatments.

Architectural details shall be used to reduce the scale and uniformity of large buildings. Elements such as colonnades, pilasters, gable ends, canopies, display windows, and light fixtures can be effective measures to add human scale.

Horizontal facades greater than 100 feet in length shall incorporate wall plane projections or recesses having a depth of at least 3% of the length of the facade and extending at least **20% of** the length of the facade. Nor uninterrupted length of any facade shall exceed 100 horizontal feet.

Other devices to add interest to long walls include strong shadow lines, changes in rooflines, pilasters and architectural details, patterns in the surface material, and wall openings. All facade elements shall be coordinated with the landscape plan to ensure balance, proportion, and continuity.

Ground floor facades that face public streets shall have display windows, entry areas, or other such transparent features along 40% or more of their horizontal length.

All sides of a large-scale building that face an abutting public or private street shall feature at least one customer entrance to facilitate pedestrian access, minimize walking distances from cars, and reduce the scale of facades. Where a building abuts more than two streets, this requirement shall apply to only two sides of the building, including the side facing the primary public street and another side facing a second street.

Large-scale buildings shall contribute to the establishment or enhancement of the pedestrian environment by provide ing at least two of the following:

- Patio/seating area
- Pedestrian area with benches
- Window shopping walkway
- Outdoor playground area
- Kiosk area
- Water fountain
- Clock tower
- Other focal features or amenities that enhance the pedestrian environment.

Scale reductions of large buildings shall be reinforced by appropriate site features such as pedestrian shelters, large trees, clearly-defined entrances, and site furnishings.

Windows shall be trimmed and include visually prominent sills, shutters or other such forms of framing.

Where principal buildings contain additional, separate stores which in total occupy less than 20,000 square feet of gross floor area, with separate, exterior customer entrances, the following additional standards shall apply:

• The street level facade of such stores shall be transparent between the height of three feet and eight feet above the walkway grade for no less than 40% of the horizontal length of the building facade of such additional stores.

Entryways. Each principal building shall have a clearly defined, highly visible customer entrance featuring three or more of the following:

- <u>Canopies</u>
- Overhangs or recesses provide shelter
- Arcades that lead to entrances
- Raised corniced parapets over the door
- Peaked roof forms
- Outdoor patios

• Architectural details such as tile work and moldings which are integrated into the building structure and design, or

• Other features which are designed to add scale and visual interest to the buildings.

Where additional stores are located in the principal building, and customer entrances to such stores are outdoors, each additional store shall conform to the above requirements. All components used to enhance entranceways or provide a distinctive look shall be designed or detailed as integral parts of the whole building.

19. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS – LINEAR COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES

Linear commercial structures (e.g., strip shopping centers, multi-tenant offices, or commercial buildings) shall be designed with facade and roofline elements that reduce their scale and add architectural interest.

Buildings with multiple storefronts (e.g., strip shopping centers, one story office buildings) shall be visually unified through the use of complimentary architectural forms, similar materials and colors, consistent details, and coordinated signage.

Variations in the front setbacks are strongly encouraged to add visual interest, create spaces for common entries, outdoor eating / social spaces, and landscaped spaces.

Linear commercial buildings shall include a focal point such as raised entrance way, clock tower, or other architectural elements - to add visual interest and help reduce the scale of the building.

Linear structures shall include architectural elements designed to provide shelter,

encourage pedestrian movement, and visually unite the building. These can include covered walkways, open colonnades, arcades, and similar features.

Entrances. Pedestrian entrances to each building shall be clearly delineated to convey a sense of individuality. This can be accomplished by architectural detailing, roofline breaks, landscaping, lighting or a combination of these elements. Where covered walkways are used, they should extend the full length of the facade.

Rooflines. Variations in rooflines, detailing, and building heights shall be included to break up the scale of connected linear buildings.

20. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS – AUTO ORIENTED USES

Service stations, car washes, and convenience stores shall be designed with facade and roofline elements that reduce their scale and add architectural interest.

Service stations, convenience stores, and similar uses shall be sited to face the street.

Pump islands and canopies shall be located in the rear or side so the primary building is the major feature seen from the road.

The architecture shall be designed so all four sides are in compliance with these design guidelines standards. Windows or other forms of fenestration shall be included on all street the façade facing facades and the street which shall be treated as a front facade.

The front facade shall include a pedestrian entrance from the street.

Service station canopies shall be visually compatible with the main structure through consistency in roof pitch, architectural detailing, materials, and color. Pitched roofs and fascia trim are preferred for canopies. Bands of bold color on the canopy and backlighting inside the canopy are prohibited.

Openings for car washes or service bays must be integrated with the design of the building and sited on the side or rear so they are not directly visible from public roadways or adjacent residential areas.

21. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS – VILLAGE: EIGHT CORNERS - RESERVED

22. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS – VILLAGE: OAK HILL - RESERVED

23. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS – VILLAGE: DUNSTON - RESERVED

24. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS HP, RH, BOR DISTRICTS Moved to waivers

In the HP, RH and BOR Districts, large scale, multi-story office, research and hi tech

buildings (40,000 square feet or greater) are allowed and encouraged. These buildings shall be designed as attractive pieces of commercial architecture that help define the Town of Scarborough. Given the context and type of development in the HP, RH and BOR Districts, the Planning Board may apply alternative design standards to large scale office, research and hi tech buildings which vary from a few specific sections of the Design Standards. These alternative standards are outline below. Other than these alternatives, the remainder of the Design Standards for Scarborough's Commercial Districts shall apply.

Metal panels and brushed aluminum are contemporary materials used in large scale office, research and hi-tech building construction. The Planning Board may allow non-reflective metal panels and brushed aluminum to be incorporated into the facade design of these structures. These materials shall be supplemented with the tradition, high-quality building materials common to northern New England to maintain a regional vernacular and sense of identity throughout Scarborough.

Under the Flat Roofs Standard in the ROOFLINE Section (pp. 13), flat roofs are discouraged in most applications.

Further, roof-mounted equipment must be screen from public view in accordance with the Roof-Mounted Equipment Standard on pp. 13

25. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS - DRIVE-THROUGH USES

Drive-throughs shall be subordinate to the design of the main building to maintain the pedestrian orientation of the structure. Architectural design and circulation planning for buildings with drive-throughs require careful consideration to integrate them into the Scarborough environment.

Drive-through operations and other automobile-oriented facilities shall be designed with facade and roofline elements that reduce their scale and add architectural interest.

Where drive-through windows are allowed, they shall be incorporated into the design of the building through their scale, color, detailing, massing, and other architectural treatments.

Drive-throughs shall avoid facing public or private roadways and shall generally be located at the side or rear of the building. Where drive-throughs are located at the rear, the site should be designed to ensure the safety of the employees and patrons.

Drive-through canopies shall be visually compatible with the main structure. This can be accomplished through consistency in roof pitch, architectural detailing, materials, and color. Pitched roofs and fascia trim are preferred for canopies. Bands of bold color on the canopy and backlighting inside the canopy are prohibited.

26. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS - ACCESSORY USES

Non-habitable structures, such as freestanding ATMs, garages, service stations, canopies, storage units, recycling sheds, trash enclosures, cart corrals, and utility buildings shall meet the same design standards as the principal building(s) on the site. The design of freestanding structures shall be coordinated with the principal building through repetition of architectural forms, materials, colors and detailing.

Where vending machines are provided, they shall be sited in locations that are not visible from the street. The site plan and architectural elevations shall show the location of all vending machines.

Where allowable, areas for outdoor sales, storage, or service shall be designed as an integral part of the site and architectural plan, and shall meet the Service Areas standards (See Site Planning, Service Areas). Covered in landscape standards

Shopping carts must be stored inside the building, or in 'cart corrals', out of the way of pedestrian circulation. Cart storage areas shall meet the standards for accessory structures.

27. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS – EXISTING STRUCTURES

Applications to the Planning Board that involve renovations and additions shall show all improvements as well as the existing structure. A narrative shall accompany the application which explains the designer's intent to relate the old with the new.

Where the existing building currently meets the design standards, proposed renovations must be designed to respect the proportions, fenestration patterns, and details of the original building. Where existing buildings meet the design standards, Additions or renovations shall complement or match the materials, form, color, and detailing of the original structure.

Where the existing building does not meet the design standards, the owner is strongly encouraged to upgrade the entire structure. Where the original building does not meet the standards, the owner shall and demonstrate how the materials used in the renovation will complement the existing structure.

Renovations shall retain any distinctive architectural features or examples of skilled craftsmanship.

All buildings shall present an inviting, human scaled facade to the street, internal drives, parking areas, and surrounding neighborhoods. Wherever possible, entrances shall be clearly visible from the street and reinforced through site and architectural features.

28. SITE PLAN WAIVERS – ARCHITECTURE

The Planning Board may review and approve requests for waivers to architecture standards for the following:

- Transparency standards This standard may be waived if other architectural elements are used to provide scale and visual interest to the front facade in keeping with these Design Standards.
- The Planning Board may allow non-reflective metal panels and brushed aluminum to be incorporated into the facade design of large scale office, research and hi-tech buildings in the HP, RH and BOR Districts. These materials shall be supplemented with the tradition, high quality building materials common to northern New England to maintain a regional vernacular and sense of identity throughout Scarborough.

12.08.23 LRPC DRAFT

BLACK – CHAPTER 405 Site Plan Review GREEN – PROPOSED BLUE – COMMMERCIAL DESIGN STANDARDS HIGHLIGHTS – CHANGES FROM LAST REVIEW

A. SITE UTILIZATION AND LAYOUT

PURPOSE

The primary goal of the site plan review process is to produce attractive, and functional and pedestrian friendly commercial and multi-family development sites that compliments and conforms to both the natural and built environment in which they are proposed. To this end, the built portions of a site shall be laid out in only the most environmentally suitable location, s for development and accommodate pedestrian movement where possible, and provide for encourage connections to nearby properties. Encourage increased walking and eyeling activity within commercial districts by providing safe, attractive, interconnected facilities.

Aesthetics and identity standards aim to create buildings and spaces that are visually appealing, distinctive, and meaningful. Move to architecture

Good site planning shall result in an attractive, safe, and economically viable relationship between buildings, parking, signage, lighting, landscaping, and the surrounding environment. Site plans shall minimize the visual effects of parking, feature high quality landscaping. This should move to the overall purpose statement

APPLICABILITY

All commercial and multi-family structures constructed after the date of effect of this Ordinance shall comply with these requirements. This includes, but is not limited to, new construction, renovations, and expansion of any building footprint exceeding xx%, or reconstruction or any other façade changes proposed through the Site Plan or Subdivision process.

The provisions of this section shall not apply to individual single and two-family dwellings and their accessory buildings, structures and areas for parking.

The provisions of this section shall not apply to RF, R2, R3, R4 or R4A zoned developments.

The provisions of this section shall not apply to Village Residential Districts. – They have their own standards and minimum setbacks

The provisions of this section shall not apply to Light Industrial (LI) or Industrial (I) zoned developments.

GENERAL STANDARDS

Structures and impervious areas shall be designed around, and away from, resource areas such as wetlands, steep slopes, water bodies and other unique natural features. Once the build-able portion of a site is identified, the principal building(s) is the most critical amenity to orient and position, as it is the focal point of the site in regards to use, visitation, and aesthetics.

The principal building(s) shall be oriented on the site in a way that is compatible with neighboring structures and the development pattern in the vicinity.

The building(s) shall also be positioned to provide an aesthetic and functional relationship with surrounding streets and sidewalks to ensure attractive and efficient vehicle and pedestrian access. Proximity of Buildings to Roadways, Buildings shall be located as close to the front property line as possible with to provide scale and interest to the auto and pedestrian environment, the majority of parking shall be located at the rear or side of the building. Moving parking lots to the rear concentrates people and places along the street, creating an environment that is arguably more accessible, interesting, and safe for walkers and bicyclists.

Parking areas, driveways, access points and sidewalks shall be designed around, and to serve, the principal building(s) and shall also compliment the neighboring development patterns and transportation networks as well as the Comprehensive Plan guidelines.

All new and renovated facilities shall be located, designed, and detailed in full compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), as revised. Universal accessibility for all that meets the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

Zoning	Multi- Family	Comm- ercial	Min Front Yard	Max Front Yard	Min Rear Yard (typical)	Building Coverage	Impervious	Height
RF	4 or fewer	Yes	50'	NA	15'	NA	NA	35'
<i>R2</i>	No	Yes	40'	NA	15'	NA	NA	35'
<i>R3</i>	Yes	Yes	40'	NA	15'	NA	NA	35'
<i>R4</i>	Yes	Yes	30'-40'	NA	15'	NA	NA	35'
R4 A	Yes	Yes	30'	NA	15'	NA	NA	35'
VR2	Yes	Yes	5'	NA	15'	60%	NA	35'3 stories
VR4	Yes	Yes	5'	NA	15'	40%	NA	35' 3 stories
TVC	Yes	Yes	10'-35' (per street)	25-90' (per street)	15'	50% 10,000- 20,000 max buildings	85%	Min 2 stories or 20' (50%) up to 45'
TVC2	Yes	Yes	10'-35' (per street)	25-90' (per street)	15'	35% 10,000 max building	85%	45'
TVC3	Yes	Yes	10'-25' (per street)	25' – 70' (per street)	15'	35% 10,000 max building	85%	45' (35' in BP Neighbor- hood)
TVC4	Yes	Yes	10'-35' (per street)	30-90' (per street)	15'	50% 20,000 max building	85%	40'
CPD	Yes	Yes	Match B2 Convention al	NA	Match B2 Convention al	Match B2 Convention al	75%	75' (35')
HP	Yes	Yes	15-25'	NA	15'	50%	75%	45-75'
RPO	Yes	Yes	10'-35' (per street)	25-90' (per street)	15'	35% 5,000 max building	75%	45'
BOR	No	Yes	35'	NA	15'	50%	NA	75'
B2	No	Yes	35-50'	NA	15'	50%	85%	60'
B3	No	Yes	35'	NA	15'	50% 30,000 footprint	NA	45'
RH	Yes	Yes	10-30'	NA	15'	50%	85%	Min 2 stories or 20' (50%) up to 45'
RH2	Yes	Yes	10-30'	NA	15'	35% 5,000 max building	85%	45'
LI	No	Yes	50'	NA	25'	50%	85%	45'
Ι	No	Yes	50'	NA	25'	50%	NA	60'

ZONING SETBACKS SHOULD REFLECT THIS – EXISTING SETBACK SUMMARY

CONSIDERATIONS FOR SETBACKS – <u>INFORMATION ONLY</u>

Buffer Yards – 10' + based on street and zone
Foundation planting – 5' plus 5' walkway if adjacent to pavement 20' Minimum in all cases needed
Drive Aisles – 24'
One row of Parking – 18'
Two rows of Parking – 36'
Minimum Proposed = Buffer + 10' =
Maximum Proposed = Buffer + 24' + 18' = 52' +

DEFINITIONS – UPDATE WHEN COMPLETE

Compact Parking. A parking space with a dimension of 8' in width and 15 feet in depth.

Cross Easement. The reciprocal legal right to pass from one property to another.

Curb Cut. The opening along the curb line at which point vehicles may enter or leave the roadway.

Neckdowns -Located at the openings of curb lines, the curb width is extended, usually 7-8", to decrease the distance between opposing curb lines and to prohibit parking. Sometimes referred to as "bump outs."

Sight Triangle -A triangular shaped portion of land established at street intersections in which nothing is erected, placed, or planted that would limit or obstruct the motorists vision as they enter or depart the intersection.

Stacking Lanes. A designated area of a parking lot that accommodates the queuing of cars (for instance, at a drive-through restaurant).

SITE ACCESS LOCATION AND DESIGN

Sound access management throughout the commercial district to maintain efficient traffic flow and high levels of safety.

Vehicle access to and from the site shall be safe and convenient, shall minimize conflict with the existing flow of traffic, and shall be from roads that have adequate capacity to accommodate the additional traffic generated by the development. Access management techniques such as limiting the number of driveways and combining driveways preserves mobility and improves safety, and shall be incorporated to the extent feasible.

Shared Access. Entrances to abutting commercial properties shall be combined to the maximum extent possible.

All development activities shall be characterized by safe, user-friendly, and efficient traffic flow. Access management principles shall be followed to reduce the number of curb cuts, provide a safer vehicular and pedestrian environment, encourage intra-parcel travel, and minimize the number of trips on roadways.

As used in this Section IV(B), the term "street or driveway" includes both public and private local, collector and arterial streets, as well as entrance roads.

Access Management. Site plan involving curb cuts onto major roadways shall demonstrate an adherence to sound access management principles to promote efficient traffic flow and maintain a high level of safety for pedestrians and motorists.

Curb Cuts on Major Roads. Site plans shall be designed to minimize the number of curb cuts on major roadways to increase vehicular and pedestrian safety.

Any street or driveway access shall be separated from any other street or driveway, existing or proposed, on-site or off-site, in accordance with the following table.

Driveway separation shall be measured from the edge of the proposed street/driveway entrance to the edge of the alternative entrance, excluding the radii. The location of the site's access shall also consider the existing location of driveways and entrances across a road or highway and shall attempt to meet the same separation standards established below.

WAIVER The Applicable Reviewing Authority may relax these standards only upon finding, based on a traffic study, that the location of the street or driveway closer than these minimums is necessary for effective utilization of the site or to enable the sharing of an access with an adjacent lot to reduce the total number of necessary curb cuts, and will not cause unreasonable congestion or unreasonable safety hazards.

POSTED SPEED IN M.P.H.	SEPARATION IN FEET
25 or less	90'
30	105'
35	130'
40	175'
45	265'
50	350'
55 or more	525'

*Entrances having the same centerline and situated directly across a road or highway from a proposed street or driveway shall not apply to this spacing requirement.

Any street or driveway access shall be so designed in profile and grading and so located as to provide the minimum sight distance measured in each direction as specified in the Maine Department of Transportation's "Entrance Rules - Chapter 299, Part B" (as may be amended from time to time).

Driveway grades at street intersections shall not be more than five percent (5%) up or down for the first fifty (50) feet from the street, unless otherwise approved by the Applicable Reviewing Authority.

Streets and driveways shall be located not less than 125 feet from the tangent point of the curb radius of any intersection. However, a greater distance or movement restrictions shall be provided if necessary based on the results of a vehicle queuing analysis at the intersection.

When serving an individual site, no part of any street or driveway shall be located within a minimum of ten (10) feet of a side property line.

WAIVER Alternatively, when a street or driveway serves two (2) or more adjacent sites, the Applicable Reviewing Authority may allow the street or driveway to be located on or within ten (10) feet of a side property line between the sites.

The sharing of street or driveway accesses between sites is should be incorporated required whenever feasible to limit curb cuts.

WAIVER Where a site has frontage on two or more streets, the Applicable Reviewing Authority will require that the access to the site be provide off the street where there is lesser potential for traffic congestion and for hazards to traffic and pedestrians.

WAIVER For developments with significant traffic volumes of 50 or more peak trips, the Applicable Reviewing Authority will consider access to more than one street, providing a traffic study clearly demonstrates a traffic safety and congestion benefit will result.

There shall be no more than one full service street or driveway connection from any lot to any street, except when an additional entrance/exit must be provided to prevent traffic hazards or congestion. If two curb cuts are found to be necessary for congestion or safety reasons they shall be separated in accordance with the separation requirements in Section IV(B)(1)(a), above.

Streets and driveways shall intersect the road at an angle as near to ninety (90) degrees as site conditions will permit and in no case less than seventy-five (75) degrees.

Streets and driveways intersecting collector and arterial roadways shall be adequately lit.

The level of service at a proposed signalized intersection shall be "D" or better. At an existing signalized intersection, the level of service shall not be reduced below "D" by the development. If an existing signalized intersection is operating below a LOS "D" predevelopment, then the development shall not increase the delay at the intersection, unless this standard is waived by the Applicable Reviewing Authority. At an un-signalized intersection, if the level of service is forecasted to be less than a "D" post-development, than the installation of a traffic signal and/or additional turning lanes shall be investigated. If these improvements are found not to be warranted, then a level of service less than "D" may be acceptable.

INTERNAL VEHICULAR CIRCULATION

The layout and circulation pattern within the site shall provide for the safe and convenient movement of passenger, service, and emergency vehicles through the site. The circulation layout shall also provide a safe, accessible pedestrian environment as well as encourage intraparcel travel, minimizing curb cuts and unnecessary roadway travel in keeping with the access management goals of section B.

The dimensions of streets and driveways shall be designed to adequately accommodate the volume and character of vehicles anticipated to visit the site on a daily basis. The required minimum and maximum dimensions for driveways are indicated below. Streets and driveways serving large volumes of daily traffic or truck traffic shall be required to establish high to maximum dimensions.

LAND USE	ONE-WAY WIDTH (FEET)	TWO-WAY WIDTH (FEET)
Residential	12 to 14	20 to 24
Commercial & Industrial generating between 10 - 50 truck trips per hour	15 to 25	26 to 30
Commercial & Industrial generating 50 or more truck trips per hour	Maine DOT Criteria to Apply	Maine DOT Criteria to Apply

A site development access driveway profile shall be designed to conform to the natural topographic features of the site, to the extent feasible. Driveways serving residential development shall be between 0.75% and 15% up or down. Driveways serving commercial or industrial developments shall be between 0.75% and 8% up or down.

The construction and materials used for a driveway, street, parking lot and drainage infrastructure shall comply with the latest standard specifications issued by The State of Maine Department of Transportation and as approved by the Applicable Reviewing Authority. Specific construction details for this infrastructure shall also be approved by the Applicable Reviewing Authority.

The layout and design of driveways and parking areas shall provide for safe and convenient circulation of vehicles throughout the site and shall provide the necessary curbing, directional markings, and signage to achieve this requirement. The layout, design and circulation pattern must also provide for pedestrians and cyclists as well as emergency, delivery, and service vehicles.

Internal Traffic Flow. To ensure the safety of motorists, delivery trucks, and pedestrians, the site plan shall clearly delineate internal traffic patterns. Site plans shall be designed by a professional engineer familiar with the Scarborough Ordinances. Parking space, directional arrows, crosswalks, and other markings on the ground shall be delineated with pavement

paint or other suitable material to ensure safe circulation.

Traffic Calming. Traffic calming measures shall be included where appropriate to discour age speeding within the site and between abutting properties. Measures may include speed tables, on street parking, raised crosswalks, vertical curbing, curvilinear road alignment, roadside plantings, neck downs, curbed islands, and signage.

Traffic calming measures shall be included where appropriate to discourage speeding within the site and between abutting sites. Measures may include speed tables, on-street parking, raised crosswalks, vertical curbing, curvilinear road alignments, roadside plantings, neckdowns, curbed islands, signage or other traffic calming techniques.

Internal Connections. Where feasible, connections between parking lots and driveways on adjacent parcels shall be provided to facilitate deliveries and minimize turning movements onto major roadways. Internal connections shall provide safe, direct access between adjacent lots in a manner that prevents them from becoming vehicular shortcuts. Cross easements shall be provided as required to facilitate circulation. The site plan shall anticipate future vehicular connections to abutting undeveloped property.

Where feasible, connections between parking lots and driveways on adjacent parcels shall be provided to facilitate deliveries and minimize turning movements onto primary roads. Internal connections shall be designed to provide safe, direct access between adjacent lots in a manner that prevents their use as vehicle shortcuts. The site plan shall show stub outs, or other driveway or parking lot linkages, anticipating future vehicular connections to abutting undeveloped property.

Identifiable routes of access for emergency and service vehicles shall be provided to and around the buildings on the site.

MINIMUM PARKING REQUIRED

Off-street parking shall conform to Section XI., Off-Street Parking & Loading Requirements, of the Zoning Ordinance.

There shall be adequate provisions made for handicap parking in accordance with the ADA Standards for Accessible Design and marked by the international symbol of accessibility. Handicap accessible spaces shall be designated in the closest located spaces on a site to the accessible entrances. Such spaces shall be provided in accordance with the following table and shall be designed in accordance with the ADA Design Standards.

TOTAL SPACES	TOTAL ACCESSIBLE SPACES REQUIRED COLUMN A	SPACES WITH 60" WIDE ACCESSIBLE AISLE	VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACES WITH 96" WIDE ACCESSIBLE AISLE
1 to 25	1	0	1
26 to 50	2	1	1

51 to 75	3	2	1
76 to 100	4	3	1
101 to 150	5	4	1
151 to 200	6	5	1
201 to 300	7	6	1
301 to 400	8	7	1
401 to 500	9	7	2
501 to 1000	2% of total parking provided	7/8 of column A	1/8 of column A
1001 and over20 plus 1 for each 100 over 1000		7/8 of column A	1/8 of column A

This table is in accordance with the ADA Design Guide, U.S. Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, Disability Rights Section

PARKING AREA LOT DESIGN

Parking lots shall be designed to complement adjacent buildings, the site, and the commercial district without becoming a dominant visual element. Every effort shall be made to reduce the scale of parking lots by minimizing the total amount of paved surface visible from the road.

Parking lots shall be designed as part of the overall plan for the site, and shall be coordinated with building entrances, lighting, and landscaping.

Parking lots shall be designed to complement adjacent buildings, the site, and the neighborhood by not being a dominant visual element. Every effort shall be made to reduce the scale of parking lots for aesthetic and stormwater reasons. Parking areas shall balance the needs of both vehicles and pedestrians. Parking lots shall be accessible and organized to serve the motorist, while being safe and pedestrian-friendly.

Parking lots shall be designed as inviting, pedestrian friendly places by careful attention to landscaping, lighting, and internal walkways. With proper planning, parking lots can balance the needs of both the vehicle and the pedestrian.

Orientation. Parking lots shall be designed as part of the overall plan for the site, and coordinated with building entrances, lighting, and landscaping.

Scale. The scale of parking areas with more than 1s spaces shall be broken up with trees, landscaped islands, grade changes, low walls, or other appropriate features. See Landscaping for specific standards regarding parking areas. LANDCAPING

Siting. Whenever possible, the majority of parking areas shall be located at the rear or sides of commercial buildings, except where parking would be located adjacent to a residential neighborhood, or when included as part of a multi building site plan (see pp. 13-14). Where land use conflicts occur, (e.g., unavoidable siting of a parking lot next to a home) the lot shall be screened with evergreen trees, earth berms, fences, or shrubs.

Whenever feasible, The majority of parking areas shall be located at the rear or sides of the building(s) being served, except where parking would be located adjacent to a residential neighborhood or when the parking is part of a multi-building site. Where such placement is not possible, the parking area shall be screened with evergreen trees, earth berms, fences, or shrubs.

Side Lot Parking. Parking on the side of buildings shall not extend closer to the street than the front facade. The space between the end of the parking lot and the roadway shall be landscaped according to an overall plan for the property.

Shared Parking. Shared parking is strongly encouraged where appropriate, particularly where abutting land uses have differing hours of peak parking demand. Cross easements may be required to allow shared parking.

Drive-Throughs. Access routes leading to or from takeout windows or other drive throughs shall minimize conflicts with pedestrian circulation routes. Motorists shall be made aware of pedestrians through signage, lighting, raised crosswalks, changes in paving, or other devices. The site plan shall be designed to prevent queuing in parking lots or other areas which would cause congestion or unsafe conditions.

Drive-through lanes shall minimize conflicts with pedestrian circulation routes. Motorists shall be made aware of pedestrians through signage, lighting, raised crosswalks, changes in paving or other devices. The site plan shall be designed to minimize queuing in parking lots or other areas which would cause congestion or unsafe conditions.

Queuing for drive-through lanes shall not interfere with the vehicle accessibility to the parking area for the site.

Service Drives. Service drives shall be separated from internal walkways, parking areas, or pedestrian use areas by landscaped islands, grade changes, or other devices to minimize pedestrian contact

Service drives shall be separated from internal walkways, parking areas, or pedestrian use areas by landscaped islands, grade changes or other devices to minimize pedestrian contact.

There shall be adequate provisions for ingress and egress to all parking spaces. The following aisle widths shall be required to ensure adequate and safe access to parking spaces. Only one-way traffic shall be permitted in aisles serving single-row parking spaces placed at an angle other than ninety (90) degrees.

DEGREE	WIDTH (FEET)
0° parallel parking	12'
30°	12'
45°	13'
60°	18'
90° perpendicular parking	<mark>25</mark> 4'

Parking areas shall be landscaped and screened in accordance with the following standards:

Paved surfaces of parking areas shall be separated from buildings by a minimum of five (5) feet of landscaping and a five (5) foot walkway. Beyond the 5 foot minimum, the width of the landscaping shall be proportional to the height of the building.

The scale and impervious area of parking lots with more than 15 spaces shall be broken up with trees, landscaped islands, grade changes, low walls, or other features.

At a minimum, between 10% and 15% of the parking lot shall be landscaped. The higher percentage (15%) shall be used for larger parking lots consisting of 40 or more spaces. The lower percentage of 10% shall be used for smaller parking lots containing fewer than 40 parking spaces. Planting islands shall be a minimum of 9 feet in width. All parking lot landscaping shall be hearty and appropriate for parking lot conditions. Existing natural groupings or clusters of trees shall also be preserved.

Where front parking is permitted between the building and the road it shall be screened by trees, berms, fencing, shrubs, low walls, perennial masses, or a combination of these elements. The height of the screening shall be approximately 3 feet to minimize the view of the parking lot and vehicles, while providing a clear view of the building and signage.

Dead End Parking Lots. Parking lots with a single point of access are strongly discouraged. Dead end parking lots shall not contain more than ten spaces. Where dead end lots are unavoidable, space shall be provided to safely turn a vehicle around without having to back out.

Parking areas with a single point of access are strongly discouraged. Dead-end parking lots shall not contain more than ten (10) spaces. Where dead-end lots must be used, adequate space shall be provided to safely turn a vehicle around to avoid backing out.

Directional signage and markers shall be utilized in diagonal parking lot arrangements.

Provisions shall be made for snow storage in the design of all parking areas. The areas shall be shown on the site plan to avoid conflicts with landscaping, visibility, drainage, or icing during the winter season.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS: GENERAL

E. Pedestrian Ways, Space & Alternative Transportation

Developments shall provide attractive, safe, and functional walkways within the site and for connection of the site to the Town's sidewalk system when a public sidewalk exists or is

planned in the vicinity of the site. Walkways shall be designed to direct pedestrians to the main entrances of the buildings from the public right-of-ways, abutting properties and businesses, and the parking areas on the site. Entrances to buildings shall also be designed to provide some outdoor space for pedestrian use, such as seating, dining, or lawn area.

All walkways and sidewalks shall be designed for efficient snow removal to enable year-round use.

Snow Storage. All walkways shall be designed for ease of snow removal to encourage year-round use. Site plans shall indicate locations for snow storage in areas where they will not interfere with pedestrian movement, block visibility, or cause dangerous conditions from freezing meltwater. In Landscape Standards

Accessibility. Walkways shall be located, designed, and detailed in full compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), as revised.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS: INTERNAL WALKWAYS.

Commercial properties shall provide attractive, safe, and functional walkways between the public right-of-way and the main entrance. Internal walkways shall invite pedestrians onto the property and make them feel welcome.

Continuous internal walkways shall be provided from any existing or planned public sidewalk in the street(s) adjacent to the site to the principal customer entrances on the site. At a minimum, walkways shall connect focal points of pedestrian activity such as transit stops, street crossings, and building entrances. Internal walkways shall be a minimum of 5 feet in width

Internal Walkways. Continuous internal walkways shall be provided from the public sidewalk to the principal customer entrance of all principal buildings on the site. At a minimum, walkways shall connect focal points of pedestrian activity such as, but not limited to, transit stops, street crossings, and building entrances.

Width, Internal walkways shall be a minimum of five feet wide to allow two people to pass comfortably. Additional width may be necessary in certain conditions, e.g., where shopping carts may be used, where heavy pedestrian traffic is anticipated, or where cars over hang the walkway.

for ADA compliance and shall be raised and separated from vehicular traffic by 6 inch curbing except at crosswalks and access areas.

Internal Pedestrian Connections. Safe pedestrian connections between abutting land uses shall be provided where possible to encourage foot traffic and minimize vehicular movement.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Movement. The circulation plan shall provide safe pedestrian and bicycle movement within the site. The plan shall demonstrate how linkages can be made to adjacent properties, both developed and undeveloped. Pedestrian and bicycle connections between abutting properties shall be coordinated with vehicular routes to encourage foot traffic and minimize vehicular movement.

Refuge Zones. Pedestrian islands (five feet minimum width) shall be installed in driveways and streets where the crossing distance is greater than 32 ft.

Within larger parking lots where the main building entrance will be 50+ feet from at least half of the parking spaces, a network of walkways shall be provided. These walkways shall be separated from parking bays and travel aisles by raised curbing or landscape buffering and shall be aligned with the main entry or a focal point on the building for way finding. The width of these internal parking lot walkways shall be five feet or more to enable the use of shopping carts or heavy pedestrian traffic.

Orientation. Walkways in parking lots shall be aligned with the main entry or a focal point on the building to assist in wayfinding.

Location. Walkways shall be located where motorists can anticipate pedestrians and react accordingly. likewise, walkways shall be designed to give the pedestrian a full view of oncoming vehicles, with minimal interference from trees, shrubs, and parked cars. Walkways shall avoid drive through lanes, access and service drives, and other high traffic routes. Traffic control signs, light fixtures, trees, or other potential obstacles shall be located far enough from walkways to prevent interference with pedestrian movement.

Walkways shall be located where motorists can anticipate pedestrians. Likewise, walkways shall be designed to give pedestrians a view of oncoming vehicles and shall avoid bisecting drive-through lanes, access and service drives, and other high-traffic routes.

Crosswalks. Internal crosswalks shall be marked by a change in pavement texture, pattern, or color to maximize pedestrian safety in parking areas and other potentially hazardous areas. The materials selected for road crossings shall be highly durable and low maintenance. Raised crosswalks shall be considered at key locations as a traffic calming device to make crosswalks more visible.

Safety. Crosswalks shall be marked by a change in pavement texture, pattern, or color to maximize pedestrian safety in parking areas and other potentially hazardous areas. Care shall be taken in the selection of shrubs, ornamental grasses, walls, or other landscape elements to maintain visibility.

Internal crosswalks shall be provided and marked by a change in pavement texture, pattern, or color to maximize pedestrian safety. The materials selected shall be highly durable and low maintenance. Raised crosswalks shall be considered at key locations as a traffic calming device as well as to make crosswalks more visible.

Signs may be warranted in certain situations as determined by the Institute for Traffic Engineers (ITE). Materials selected for crosswalks shall allow safe bicycle movement across the surface.

Curbing. Internal walkways shall be separated from parking bays and/or travel lanes by raised curbing. Granite is preferred for its longevity, low maintenance, and appearance.

Areas adjacent to walkways shall be landscaped with trees, shrubs, ground cover, benches or other materials. Walkways in parking areas shall include landscaped islands for visual relief, shade, and scale.

Major entrances to new or renovated buildings shall be complemented with outdoor seating or use areas. Canopies, recessed entrances, seating areas, decorative plantings, lawn areas and other elements may be incorporated around the building entry to serve as pedestrian space or gathering areas.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS: PUBLIC SIDEWALKS AND CROSSWALKS

Sidewalks provide many benefits to a community including pedestrian safety, mobility options, health benefits and even economic impacts. The propensity to walk is influenced not only by distance, but by the quality of the walking experience. Good sightlines and visibility toward destinations and intermediate points are important for way-finding and personal security. There are many areas in Scarborough's commercial areas which are currently not pedestrian or bicycle friendly. The long-term objective is to create an interconnected network of sidewalks to achieve these benefits. to encourage exercise for the general population.

Public sidewalks should be provided wherever possible throughout Scarborough's commercial areas. Existing and proposed road corridors should include sidewalks on both sides of the street, planted esplanades, crosswalks, and pedestrian amenities to encourage a safe flow of non-motorized traffic.

If a sidewalk does not exist in the street(s) adjacent to the site but the Town has identified the construction of a sidewalk for this portion of the street(s) in the Town Wide Transportation Study (March 2005) the applicant shall be responsible for the construction of a sidewalk along the full width of the frontage or in a location otherwise determined by the Applicable Reviewing Authority. The applicant shall not be responsible for the construction of a sidewalk in a location for which the Town Council has already adopted and funded a Sidewalk Capital Improvement Plan.

Public Sidewalks. Wherever possible, Sidewalks and planted esplanades shall be provided within or near the right of way on both sides of all streets to encourage safe pedestrian movement. Facilities shall be coordinated with abutting land uses to create interconnections throughout the commercial area and linkages to surrounding residential neighborhoods. Lighting and other amenities abutting walkways should be at human scale.

If a sidewalk is required to be constructed, the sidewalk shall be located within the right-ofway of the public street unless the width of the right-of-way will not allow for this. In this case, the sidewalk shall be located on the parcel in the area immediately adjacent to the street right-of-way unless the topography or natural characteristics of the site or existing development make this impractical. When determining the location and alignment of new sidewalks, existing street trees shall be avoided and preserved to the extent possible to further the goals of "subsection F Landscaping, Buffering and Greenspace" of this Ordinance.

If the sidewalk will be located outside of the street right-of-way, the applicant shall convey an easement to the Town for the sidewalk area.

When a sidewalk is constructed wholly within the street right-of-way it must conform to the design and construction requirements set forth in the Town's Street Acceptance Ordinance

(Chapter 701) for the class of street. When a sidewalk is constructed wholly or partly outside of the street right-of-way the location and design of the sidewalk must be approved by the Applicable Reviewing Authority as part of the site plan approval.

Coordination with Site Plan. All new sidewalks shall be designed coordinated with the Site Plan to avoid conflicts with landscaping, utilities, grading, drainage structures, signs, and other elements. Sidewalks shall be designed to facilitate snow removal and allow year-round use. Sheet flow of stormwater across sidewalks shall be avoided. Underground storm drainage systems are strongly encouraged.

Material Selection. Concrete sidewalks with granite curbing shall be used on sidewalks within the public ROW.

Crosswalks. Where sidewalks intersect with commercial drives or roads, crosswalks shall be installed to alert the motorist and improve visibility. Crosswalks shall offer a noticeable change in texture and color. Materials for crosswalks shall be highly durable and slip resistant.

ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION

Provisions shall be made for alternative transportation if the site is located on a bus or bicycle route. Such provisions may consist of bus shelters, bicycle racks, or individual travel lanes for either mode of transportation.

SITE PLAN WAIVERS – PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENT

If an applicant can demonstrate to the Applicable Reviewing Authority that the nature or operation of the proposed use will not necessitate the minimum parking space requirements found in Section XI., the Applicable Reviewing Authority shall have the authority to approve a site plan showing fewer parking spaces than are required. This allowance may only be provided, however, if the site plan incorporates a landscaped area that is feasible and adequate to accommodate the requisite parking under Section XI., should there be a future change in the nature or operation of the use necessitating the required parking.

The Board of Appeals may also permit a reduction in the required parking spaces as per Section XI(F) of the Zoning Ordinance.

For uses that experience high turn-over traffic volumes (i.e. typical visitation is less than onehour) the Applicable Reviewing Authority may require the dimensions of parking spaces in close proximity of the building entrance to be 10 feet wide by 20 feet long.

The Applicable Reviewing Authority may approve parking spaces for use by employees or residential parking to be 8 feet wide. All 8 foot wide parking spaces that are provided for employees and residential uses must be in physically segregated parking areas and the design of such parking areas must be shown on an approved site plan. No more than 10% of off-street parking spaces may be designed with a width of less than 9 feet.

SITE PLAN WAIVERS – OTHERS.....